
NEVADA STATE  
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 
 

BOARD MEETING 
 

October 14-15, 2020 
 
 

Zoom 
https://zoom.us/j/5886256671 

Meeting ID: 5886256671 
 

Please do not remove the book from the meeting room. 

1

https://zoom.us/j/5886256671


2

https://zoom.us/j/5886256671


2 of 10 

Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi judicial 

proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the board may 

refuse to consider public comment.  See NRS 233B.126.  Please be aware that after the 
quasi-judicial board or commission has rendered a decision in the contested case and, 
assuming this happens before adjournment, the board or commission may entertain public 

comment on the proceeding at that time. 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call – Establishment of Quorum

2. Public Comment:  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the
agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a future agenda as an
item.  (NRS 241.020)

 CONSENT AGENDA  

The Consent Agenda contains matters of routine acceptance.  The Board Members may 
approve the consent agenda items as written or, at their discretion, may address individual 
items for discussion or change. 

3. Approval of September 2-3, Minutes (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

4. 4.1 Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy License – Non-appearance 

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 

A. Advanced InfusionCare – Dallas, TX
B. ApothecoRX – New York, NY
C. Ascension Michigan Pharmacy – Farmington Hills, MI
D. Biologics by McKesson – Cary, NC
E. Biologics by McKesson – Cary, NC
F. Complete Medical Supplies, Inc – Coral Springs, FL
G. divvyDOSE – Moline, IL
H. Eagle Pharmacy – Virginia Beach, VA
I. Galaxy Pharmacy – Long Beach, CA
J. LA Pharmacy LLC – Alhambra, CA
K. Magnolia Pharmacy – Cumming, GA
L. MedWiseRx – Tucson, AZ
M. MK Pharmacy – Houston, TX
N. Morris Apothecary LLC – Parsippany, NJ
O. Pharmxpress Pharmacy – Tampa, FL
P. Princeton Medical Pharmacy LLC – Princeton, NJ
Q. Spring Creek Pharmacy, LLC – Edmond, OK

4.2 Application for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License – Non-

appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 

R. Lucile Packard Children’s Hospital Outpatient Pharmacy – Palo Alto, CA
S. Saveway Market Pharmacy – Salmon, ID

3



3 of 10 

4.3 Applications for Out-of-State Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License 

– Non-appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

T. Bonds Therapeutics LLC – Columbiana, OH
U. Capital Medical Corporation – Tallahassee, FL’
V. DJO, LLC – Carlsbad, CA
W. Gordian Medical, Inc. – Irvine, CA
X. Gordian Medical II, Inc. – Spring, TX
Y. Gordian Medical IV, Inc. – Riverside, CA
Z. Gordian Medical V, Inc. – Houston, TX
AA. Gordian Medical VI, Inc. – Irvine, CA 
BB. Hanger Clinic – Salt Lake City, UT 
CC. Mendtronix Inc. – Poway, CA
DD. Nexel Health – Katy, TX
EE. Next Level Medical Supply LLC – Ft. Lauderdale, FL 
FF. Permobil, Inc. – Lebanon, TN 
GG. SourceMark, LLC – Hebron, KY 

4.4 Applications for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License – 

Non-appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
None 

4.5 Applications for Out-of-State Wholesaler License – Non-appearance (FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION) 

Background Check Not Required by Law. 

4.5.1 Distributor for Single Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(e)) 
None 

4.5.2 Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(d)) 

HH. Exelead, Inc. – Indianapolis, IN 
II. RVL Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Sayreville, NJ
JJ. Slayback Pharma, LLC – Princeton, NJ 
KK. Time-Cap Laboratories, Inc. – Melville, NY 
LL. QED Therapeutics, Inc. – Brisbane, CA

4.5.3 Publicly Traded (NAC 639.593(7)(a)) 

MM. McKesson Medical-Surgical Government Solutions LLC – Henrico, VA
NN. McKesson Medical-Surgical Minnesota Supply Inc. – Henrico, VA 

4.5.4 VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c)) 

OO. MD Logistics, LLC – Plainfield, IN 

4



4 of 10 

PP. RxCrossroads 3PL LLC – Mason, OH 

4.5.5 Manufacturer and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c) and (d)) 

QQ. MD Logistics, LLC – Plainfield, IN 
RR. MD Logistics, LLC – Plainfield, IN 

4.5.5 Publicly Traded and Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (d)) 

SS. Rhythm Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Boston, MA 

4.5.6 Publicly Traded and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (c)) 

TT. McKesson Medical-Surgical Inc. – Clear Brook, VA 
UU. McKesson Medical-Surgical Inc. – Rock Hill, SC 
VV. McKesson Specialty Distribution, LLC
WW. McKesson Specialty Distribution, LLC 

4.5.7 Background checks completed in compliance with NRS 639.500. No 

Disqualifying Events. 

XX. SC Wholesale – St. George, UT

4.6 Application for Nevada Compounding Pharmacy License – Non-appearance

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

YY. Renown Pharmacy – Reno, NV

4.7 Application for Ambulatory Surgery Center License- Non-appearance (FOR

POSSIBLE ACTION)

ZZ. Affordable Excellence Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV
AAA. Desert Orthopaedic Pain Center – Las Vegas, NV
BBB. First Specialty Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV
CCC. Signature Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV
DDD. Ultimate Specialty Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV

4.8 Application for Nevada Pharmacy License – Non-appearance (FOR POSSIBLE

ACTION)

EEE. All City Pharmacy LLC – Las Vegas, NV

 REGULAR AGENDA  

5. Disciplinary hearings pursuant to NRS 639.247.  Note:  The Board may convene in
closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional
competence or physical or mental health of any of the below named parties.

5



5 of 10 

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 

A. Katherine Kuehl, RPH    (19-035-RPH-B-S) 
B. Lily Akana, PT    (19-075-PT-S) 
C. Ashley Carrier, APRN (19-089-CS-S) 
D. Theodore Herrera  (19-079-IN-S) 
E. Jerald Clyde, RPH (19-061-RPH-S) 
F. Smith’s Pharmacy #366 (19-061-PH-S) 
G. Abdel M. Khalek, MD  (19-003-CS-A-S) 
H. Robert Chancellor, MD (19-003-CS-B-S) 
I. Lindsay Hoffman, PA-C   (19-003-CS-C-S) 
J. Bernard Kofi Addo-Quaye, MD   (19-242-CS-A-S) 
K. Mukwel Aiyuk, APRN  (19-242-CS-B-S) 
L. Jeff Chen, MD     (20-001-CS-N) 
M. Kirash Mirkia, MD (19-090-CS-S-A) 

6. Appeal hearings for citation and fine pursuant to NRS 639.2895(2).  Note:  The Board
may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct,
professional competence or physical or mental health of any of the below named

parties.  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

Vinay Kumar Bararia, MD                                                             (19-003-CS-D-S)

7. Petition for Reinstatement of Pharmacist Registration and Request to Appear Before
the Board – Appearance. Note:  The Board may convene in closed session to
consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or

mental health of any of the below named parties.  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

Daniel Niel, RPH

8. Applications for Pharmacist Registration by Examination – Appearance.  Note:  The
Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct,
professional competence or physical or mental health of any of the below named

parties.  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

Michael Shimoide

9. Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician in Training Registration– Appearance.
Note:  The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged
misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of any of the below

named parties.  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

A. Gina Chiofolo
B. Jasmine McLaurie

10. Application for Veterinarian Authority to Dispense Drugs Registration – Appearance.
Note:  The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged

6



6 of 10 

misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of any of the below 

named parties.  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 

A. Carrie Lambert, DVM
B. Melissa Tyson, DVM

11. Applications for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License – Appearance

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

A. APS Pharmacy – Palm Harbor, FL
B. Carolina Infusion – Ridgeland, SC
C. Hunt Valley PharmaLAB – Cockeysville, MD
D. Olympia Pharmacy – Orlando, FL
E. Option Care – Roseville, MN
F. Pope Shenouda LLC – Holiday, FL
G. Procure Pharmaceutical Services – Burgettstown, PA

12. Application for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License –

Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

A. ActiveStyle, Inc. – Reno, NV
B. Evolve Prosthetics & Orthotics – Henderson, NV
C. First Care Medical Supply LLC – Las Vegas, NV
D. Nevada Limb & Brace, LLC – Henderson, NV

13. Application for Nevada Wholesaler License – Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)
None 

14. Applications for Out-of-State Wholesaler License – Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE

ACTION)

Background Check Not Required by Law.

14.1 Distributor for Single Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(e))
None  

14.2 Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(d)) 

A. Sheffield Pharmaceuticals LLC – New London, CT
B. Sun Pharmaceuticals Industries, Inc. – Billerica, MA
C. Zydus Pharmaceuticals (USA) Inc. – Pennington, NJ

14.3 Publicly Traded (NAC 639.593(7)(a)) 
None 

14.4 VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c)) 
None 

7



7 of 10 

14.5 Manufacturer and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c) and (d)) 
None 

14.6 Publicly Traded and Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (d)) 
None 

14.7 Publicly Traded and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (c)) 
None 

14.8 Background checks completed in compliance with NRS 639.500. 

Disqualifying Events. 

D. Apnar Pharma LP – Chino, CA

14.9 Background checks completed in compliance with NRS 639.500.  No 

Disqualifying Events. 
None 

15. Application for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility – Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE

ACTION)

A. Optum Compounding Services, LLC – Phoenix, AZ
B. Imprimis NJOF, LLC – Ledgewood, NJ
C. KRS Global Biotechnology, Inc. – Boca Raton, FL
D. Nephron Sterile Compounding Center, LLC – West Columbia, SC
E. Olympia Pharmacy – Orlando, FL
F. QuVa Pharma, Inc. – Sugar Land, TX
G. QuVa Pharma, Inc. – Temple, TX
H. Sincerus Florida, LLC – Pompano Beach, FL
I. Wedgewood Connect, LLC – San Jose, CA

16. Application for Nevada Pharmacy License – Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

Plus One Pharmacy, LLC – Las Vegas, NV

17. Request for Pharmacist Applicant to Retake the Nevada MPJE Exam – Appearance:

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

Sathish Ariarra Cariappa

18. Application for Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Prescribe Registration –
Appearance.  Note:  The Board may convene in closed session to consider the
character, alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health

of any of the below named parties.  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

Natalie Wynn, APRN

8



8 of 10 

19. Request to Engage in the Practice of Pharmacy at a Site Other than a Licensed

Pharmacy – Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

A. KayLynn Bowman, RPH
B. James Kim, RPH

20. Approval of Revised Wholesaler Application (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

21. Rehearing of Order in Case No. 20-008-PT-S on Application of Jevons Wang

pursuant to NRS 639.252 (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

22. Applications for Controlled Substance Registration– Appearance.  Note:  The Board
may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct,
professional competence or physical or mental health of any of the below named

parties.  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

Kim Kemmerly, DMD

23. General Counsel Report.  Note: The Board may exclude the public for a report on
potential or existing litigation pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2).

24. Executive Secretary Report:

A. Financial Report
B. Issuance of Temporary Licenses and Registrations
C. Meetings with Other Health Care Regulatory Boards
D. COVID-19 Response

 Emergency Regulation Update
E. Licensing Software Update
F. Licensing Activities Report
G. PMP Integration

 PUBLIC HEARING 

Thursday October 15, 2020 – 9:00 am 

25. Notice of Proposed Regulation Public Hearing Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION):

Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.510 Schedule I; 453.550 

Schedule V.  The proposed amendment adds certain substances to schedule 1; provides 
that certain drug products are not a controlled substance; and removes certain drug products 
from schedule V.  (LCB File No. R090-20) 

9



9 of 10 

 WORKSHOP 

Thursday October 15, 2020 – 9:00 am 

26. Notice of Proposed Regulation Workshop Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION):

A. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.501 Inspections;

provision of self-assessment form. The proposed amendment to NAC 639.501
will remove the requirement to complete an assessment of workplace and
modifies the requirement of an annual inspection.

B. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.  The proposed
amendment adds a new section thereto authorizing the issuance of a citation to
and assessment of an administrative fine against a registered pharmacist and a
licensed pharmacy pursuant to NRS 639.2895 for a prescription misfill in violation
of Nevada law in certain instances.

C. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.010 Definitions,

(NAC) 639.403  Application required for pharmacist to engage in practice

of pharmacy at site other than licensed pharmacy; exemption for

pharmacists who administer immunizations, (NAC) 639.406 Hearing to

approve or deny application from pharmacist,  (NAC) 639.409 Grounds for

revocation, suspension or placement of restrictions on approval granted

to pharmacist to practice pharmacy at site other than licensed pharmacy,

(NAC) 639.412 Application for licensed pharmacy to use services of one

or more pharmacists at site other than licensed pharmacy, (NAC) 639.415

Hearing to approve or deny application from licensed pharmacy, (NAC)

639.418 Grounds for revocation, suspension or placement of restrictions

on approval granted to licensed pharmacy to use services of one or more

pharmacists at site other than licensed pharmacy. The proposed
amendment to these regulations will modify the locations where a pharmacist
may practice pharmacy.

27. Date and Location of Next Scheduled Board Meeting:

December 2-3, 2020 – Las Vegas, NV 

28. Public Comment:  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the
agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a future agenda as an
item.  (NRS 241.020)

29. Adjournment

Note: We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public 
who are disabled and wish to attend the meeting.  If special arrangements for the 
meeting are necessary, please notify the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, 985 

10



10 of 10 

Damonte Ranch Parkway, Suite 206, Reno, NV, 89521, or call Kristopher 
Mangosing at (775) 850-1440, as soon as possible. 

Supporting materials or additional information regarding the meeting may be obtained from 
Shirley Hunting at (775) 850-1440, email shunting@pharmacy.nv.gov or 985 Damonte Ranch 
Parkway, Suite 206, Reno, Nevada, 89521. 

No Continuing Education credit, will be given for attending this Board meeting. 

This notice has been posted at www.notice.nv.gov and www.bop.nv.gov pursuant to 
Governor’s Declaration of Emergency Directive 006. 

11

mailto:shunting@pharmacy.nv.gov
http://www.notice.nv.gov/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

12



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3

22



 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

985 Damonte Ranch Pkwy, Ste 206, Reno, NV 89521 

(775) 850-1440  •  1-800-364-2081  •  FAX  (775) 850-1444 

•  Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

 

1 of 10 

 
 
 

September 2nd & 3rd, 2020 
Minutes 

 
 
Pursuant to Governor Steve Sisolak’s Emergency Directive 006, there will be no physical 
location for this meeting. The meeting can be listened to or viewed live over Zoom.   

 
Via Videoconference at Zoom: 
https://zoom.us/j/5886256671 

 
or 
 

Via Teleconference at 1 (669) 900-6833  
Meeting ID: 588 625 6671 

 
Board Members Present:  
 
Helen Park  Krystal Freitas  Jade Jacobo   Richard Tomasso 
 
Rolf Zakariassen Wayne Mitchell  Gener Tejero    
 
Board Staff Present: 
 
David Wuest  Yenh Long  Shirley Hunting  Kristopher Mangosing 
 
Brett Kandt  Courtney Lee Joe Dodge   Dena McClish 
 
Luis Curras  Leo Basch  Ken Scheuber  Sophia Long 
 
Monica Segedy       Shannon Reichman 
 
President Park read the mission statement of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy to 
reiterate the Board’s duty to carry out and enforce the provisions of Nevada Law to protect 
the health, safety, and welfare of the public.  
 
Dave Wuest announced that this meeting is being held virtually and discussed social  
distancing protocols.  

23

https://zoom.us/j/5886256671


 

2 

 

   
1. Call to Order and Roll Call – Establishment of Quorum 
 
President Park performed the roll call. All Board Members were present and a quorum was 
established. 
 
2. Public Comment September 02, 2020 9:00 AM 
 
There was no Public Comment.  
 

  CONSENT AGENDA   
 

 
3. Approval of July 15-16, 2020, Minutes 
 
President Park noted corrections on page 8 to Dr. Charles Kamen’s name and page 23 with 
Steven McBride’s name.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the July 15-16, 2020 minutes pending 

corrections as discussed above.  
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
4. 4.1 Applications for Out-of-State  Pharmacy License – Non-appearance  
   
 

A. AdhereRx, Inc. – Gilbert, AZ 
B. Blink Pharmacy Plus – Pittsburgh, PA 
C. Epic Pharmacy – Oklahoma City, OK 
D. First Choice Home Infusion LLC – Hendersonville, TN 
E. LeMed Pharmacy III, LLC 
F. Preferred Pharmacy Inc – Costa Mesa, CA 
G. Solara Medical Supplies LLC – Chula Vista, CA 
H. Stoneview Pharmacy – Gilbert, AZ 
I. Vet Perfect, Inc. – Boca Raton, FL 
J. Vivo Health Pharmacy at Home – Great Neck, NY 
K. Zoetis US LLC – Lee’s Summit, MO 

 
 4.2 Application for Out-of-State  Compounding Pharmacy License – Non-

appearance  
 

L. Burt’s Pharmacy, LLC – Newbury Park, CA 
M. Cheveux LLC – Phoenix, AZ 

24



 

3 

 

N. Express Veterinary Pharmacy – Gilbert, AZ 
O. Jungle Jim’s Pharmacy – Fairfield, OH 

 
4.3 Applications for Out-of-State  Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License 

– Non-appearance  
 

P. A Better Choice Medical Supply, LLC – Waterford, MI 
Q. BioTel INR, LLC – Indianapolis, IN 
R. Control Bionics Inc. – Milford, OH 
S. First Nation Group, LLC – Denver, CO 
T. Icon Medical Solutions Corp. – Leominster, MA 
U. Linde Gas North America, LLC – Livingston, TN 
V. Nephron Pharmacy LLC – West Columbia, SC 
W. Nitrous Oxide Corp – Tooele, UT 
X. Nitrous Oxide Corp – Yazoo City, MS 
Y. Recovery DME, Inc. – San Diego, CA 

Z. RGH Enterprises, Inc. – Jacksonville, FL 
AA. Secure Medical Products, Inc. – Deerfield Beach, FL 
BB. Sleep Data Holdings, LLC – San Diego, CA 

 
4.4 Applications for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License – 

Non-appearance 
 None 
 
4.5 Applications for Out-of-State  Wholesaler License – Non-appearance  
 
Background Check Not Required by Law.  
 
4.5.1 Distributor for Single Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(e))  

None  
 
4.5.2 Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(d)) 
 

CC. Acertis Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Langhorne, PA 
DD. Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC – Short Hills, NJ 
EE. Estreno Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Sunrise, FL 
FF.Nestle HealthCare Nutrition, Inc. – Bridgewater, NJ 
GG. PCI of Illinois – Rockford, IL 
HH. Praxair Distribution, Inc. – Bethlehem, PA 
II. Profounda, Inc. – Orlando, FL 
JJ. Sovereign Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Forth Worth, TX 
KK. Tusker Medical, Inc. – Menlo Park, CA 
LL. Zealand Pharma US, Inc. – Marlborough, MA 

 
4.5.3 Publicly Traded (NAC 639.593(7)(a)) 

 
MM. BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Durham, NC 

25



 

4 

 

NN. RGH Enterprises, Inc. – Jacksonville, FL 
 
4.5.4 VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c)) 
 

OO. NDC Distributors LLC – Brooklyn, NY 
 
4.5.5 Manufacturer and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c) and (d)) 

   None 
 

4.5.5 Publicly Traded and Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (d)) 
 

PP. Apellis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Waltham, MA 
QQ. AVEO Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Boston, MA 
RR. Dermira, Inc. – Menlo Park, CA 
SS. Gamida Cell Inc – Boston, MA 
TT. TG Therapeutics, Inc. – Edison, NJ 

 
4.5.6 Publicly Traded and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (c)) 

  None 
 
4.5.7 Background checks completed in compliance with NRS 639.500. No 

Disqualifying Events. 
 

UU. Puragraft – Kingwood, TX 
VV. Takeda Pharmaceuticals America, Inc. – Florence, KY 

 
 4.6 Application for Nevada Pharmacy License – Non-appearance (FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION) 
  None 
 
Krystal Freitas disclosed that she has a business relationship with Consent Agenda Item 4.3P  
but is able to participate fairly and without bias. 
 
Rolf Zackariassen disclosed that his father had a business relationship with Consent  
Agenda Item 4FF, that he himself had worked for 4FF, but he is able to participate fairly and  
without bias.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
 

5. Discipline 

26



 

5 

 

 
A. Kirash Mirkia, MD      (19-090-CS-S-A) 

 
Brett Kandt prosecuted the case on behalf of the State. Keith Weaver appeared as counsel 
representing Respondent Kirash Mirkia. 
 
The Board heard oral argument on Respondent’s Motion to Dismiss. Mr. Weaver argued that 
the Nevada statutes are not clear on the authority of APRN’s to possess and administer, as 
demonstrated by the fact that a competitor asking for clarification in the form of an advisory 
opinion from the Board, and subsequently filed a complaint against Dr. Mirkia that provided 
the basis for administrative charges, making the action therefor invalid.  Mr. Weaver argued 
that there were no dangerous drugs involved and that the pharmacy from which Dr. Mirkia 
bought drugs from does not need to be licensed by the Board.  
 
Mr. Kandt responded to the arguments by pointing out that the standard on a motion to 
dismiss required the Board to accept all factual allegations in the Accusation as true.  Mr. 
Kandt argued that the facts alleged supported the charges, and referenced the specific 
language of NRS 454.213(1)(c), NRS 454.201 and NAC 639.6915.  
 
Board members ask questions of both attorneys and discussion ensued.   
 
Sophia Long, Deputy Attorney General sitting as Board counsel, advised the Board on the 
standard for a motion to dismiss. 
 
President Park asked the Board members to consider denying the Motion to Dismiss. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to deny the Motion to Dismiss.  
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kandt and Mr. Weaver stipulated on the record to continue this matter to a future  
meeting. 
 

B. Victoria Wall, MD      (20-067-CS-S) 
 
Brett Kandt prosecuted the case on behalf of the State. Baron Harmon appeared as counsel  
representing Respondent Victoria Wall. 
 
Dr. Wall appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering  
testimony. 
 
The Board heard oral argument on the prosecution’s Motion to Deem the Allegations  
Admitted and on Respondent’s Motion for Continuance.  Mr. Kandt argued that the facts were  

27



 

6 

 

uncontroverted that on or about May 13, 2009, and during subsequent renewal periods, Dr.  
Wall requested that her License No. 12154 issued by the Nevada State Board of Medical  
Examiners (NSBME) be placed on inactive status with an explanation or attestation showing  
that “you are not practicing or have not practiced medicine in Nevada.” Dr. Wall’s NSBME  
License No. 12154 to practice in Nevada has been inactive since 2009. 
 
On each renewal application for her Certificate of Registration No. CS15026 for the years  
2010, 2012, 2014, 2016, and 2018, Dr. Wall certified to the Board that she held an active  
and current Nevada license with the NSBME. 
 
Dr. Wall wrote multiple prescriptions for controlled substances from June 2009 to the present  
while her NSBME License No. 12154 to practice medicine in Nevada was inactive.  
 
On or about June 5, 2020, Board staff served Dr. Wall with an order pursuant to NRS  
639.2895(1) to immediately cease and desist prescribing controlled substances for Nevada  
patients. 
 
On June 14, 2020 Dr. Wall surrendered her DEA Certificate of Registration No. BW8998025  
to the U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration by executing a DEA form 104, entitled  
“Surrender for Cause” (DEA Surrender for Cause). 
 
By executing the DEA Surrender for Cause, Dr. Wall acknowledged in pertinent part the 
following:  

In view of my alleged failure to comply with Federal requirements pertaining to 
controlled substances or list 1 chemicals, and as an indication of my good faith in 
desiring to remedy any incorrect or unlawful practices on my part, I hereby surrender 
for cause my Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) Certification of Registration.  
 

Ms. Wall’s surrender of her DEA Certificate of Registration No. BW8998025 for cause 
operated as an immediate suspension of her Certificate of Registration No. CS15026 with the 
Board pursuant to NRS 639.2107 
 
Mr. Harmon argued that Dr. Wall did not try to willfully deceive the Board. Dr. Wall has 
completed her continuing education credits for her license. Had she changed her status to 
active she would have been in compliance with Nevada Law. Mr. Harmon also stated that Dr. 
Wall was licensed to practice medicine in California during the period in question and that 
license was in good standing.  
 
Mr. Kandt argued that Dr. Wall had, through counsel, voluntarily surrendered her Certificate 
of Registration No. CS15026 and is subject to discipline pursuant to NRS 233B.121(6).  
 
Sophia Long stated that should the Board grant the prosecution’s Motion and deem the 
allegations admitted, Respondent’s Motion for Continuance should be denied.  
 
Mr. Kandt moved to admit Dr. Wall’s Surrender of Cause of her DEA be admitted  
into the record as Exhibit A.  Mr. Harmon had no objection. 
 

28



 

7 

 

President Park admitted into the record Exhibit A. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to admit into the record Ms. Wall’s Notice of Surrender of  
Controlled Substance Registration with the Nevada Board of Pharmacy as Exhibit B.  Mr.  
Harmon had no objection. 
 
President Park admitted into the record Exhibit B. 
 
Mr. Harmon moved to admit into the record Ms. Wall’s Evidence of Good Standing  
Licensure with the Medical Board of California as Exhibit C.  Mr. Kandt had no objection. 
 
President Park admitted Exhibit C into the record. 
 
Mr. Harmon moved to admit into the record Ms. Wall’s good standing with the  
American Board of Ophthalmology as Exhibit D.  Mr. Kandt had no objection. 
 
President Park admitted into the record Exhibit D. 
 
Mr. Harmon moved to admit into the record an email from Mr. Harmon to Mr. Kandt dated  
September 1, 2020, which contains a statement from Dr. Wall as Exhibit E.  Mr. Kandt had no  
objection. 
 
President Park admitted into the record Exhibit E. 
 
Mr. Kandt reiterated in closing that based upon Dr. Wall’s responses and judicial admissions,  
her surrender for cause of her DEA registration and her voluntary surrender of her controlled  
substance registration, there are no material issues of fact or affirmative defenses, and no  
basis for a continuance. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to grant the prosecution’s motion to deem the allegations 

set forth in paragraphs two through eight of the Accusation as admitted.  
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to deny the Respondent’s Motion for Continuance. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Board Action 

29



 

8 

 

 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to making findings of fact consistent with paragraphs 

1-8 of the Accusation together with a finding that on August 24, 2020, through 
her legal counsel, Dr. Wall voluntarily surrendered her Certificate of Registration 
No. CS15026.  

 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Board Action 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to make conclusions of law consistent with 

paragraphs 9-29 of the Accusation, including the eight causes of action, and to 
also conclude as a matter of law that by voluntarily surrendering her Certificate 
of Registration No. CS15026 while this administrative action was pending, Dr. 
Wall is subject to discipline pursuant to NRS 233B.121(6). 

 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
Board Action 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to fine Dr. Wall $2,000 for each of the first seven 

causes of action, for a total of $14,000 dollars to be paid to the State of Nevada. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
On the basis of that discipline Mr. Kandt moved to admit into the record documentation of  
$1,962.87 in attorney’s fees and costs incurred in investigating and prosecuting this matter as  
Exhibit F.  Mr. Harmon had no objection.  
 
President Park admitted into the record Exhibit F. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved that Dr. Wall pay $1,962.87 to partially reimburse the 

Board for documented attorney’s fees and costs incurred in investigating and 
prosecuting this matter, the Board finding that these expenses were 
reasonable, necessary, and actually incurred. 

 
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 

30



 

9 

 

Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
 

C. Katherine Kuehl      (19-035-RPH-B-S) 
 
This item was continued. 
 

D. Walmart Pharmacy #10-3728    (18-096-PH-S) 
 
Ms. Freitas recused herself from participation in this matter due to a friend who is involved in 
this matter. 
 
Ms. Jacobo disclosed that this case has respondents who were past employers and co-
workers, but she is able to participate fairly and without bias.  
 
Brett Kandt prosecuted the case on behalf of the State. Shelley Tustison, Health and 
Wellness Compliance for Walmart, John Castro, pharmaceutical technician subpoenaed to 
appear, and Hal Taylor, legal counsel for Walmart, appeared before the Board. 
 
President Park swore in Ms. Tustison and Mr. Castro prior to answering questions or offering 
testimony. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where a data entry error by a pharmaceutical 
technician resulted in the dispensing of two unauthorized refills of a prescription. Registered 
pharmacist Jessica Huey verified as correct the two unauthorized refills. Pursuant to NRS 
6393230(5), NAC 639.702, and NAC 639.945(2), Walmart #10-3728 is responsible for each 
of the above stated allegations. Mr. Kandt reported that the First Cause of Action against 
Respondent Gloria Remley had been dismissed and Remley was cited and fined $1000 
pursuant to NRS 639.2895(2) for violating NAC 639.252(2).  Remley has paid her fine in full. 
The Second Cause of Action against Respondent Jessica Huey had been dismissed as well. 
 
Mr. Taylor stated that Mr. Kandt’s summary is accurate. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented a proposed Stipulation and Order for the Board’s consideration, that 
Walmart #10-3728 pay a fine of $1000, and pay $1000 to partially reimburse the Board for 
recoverable attorney fees and costs 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve the Stipulation and Order as presented to the 

Board. 
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 

E. Paul Luke       (19-066-PH-S) 

31



 

10 

 

 
Courtney Lee prosecuted the case on behalf of the State. Paul Luke appeared and was 
sworn by President Park.  
 
Ms. Lee summarized the facts of the case that Mr. Luke was employed by St. Rose 
Dominican Hospital-San Martin Campus (St. Rose), located in Las Vegas. 
 
In April of 2019, Pharmacist John Glick, Director of Pharmacy for St. Rose, reported Mr. Luke 
to the Nevada Board of Pharmacy alleging concealment of drugs and pharmacy supply items 
in a bag from St. Rose with intent to divert. 
 
A subsequent investigation by St. Rose’s staff identified a total of at least twenty tablets 
diverted by Mr. Luke. During the investigation, Mr. Luke admitted to the unlawful diversion 
activity, and submitted a statement regarding the same. Mr. Luke was terminated on April 5, 
2019. 
 
Ms. Lee questioned Mr. Luke about receiving the Notice of Intended Action and Accusation 
together with the Statement to Respondent and Notice of Hearing mailed to him by the 
Board. Mr. Luke acknowledged receipt of the accusation. 
 
Ms. Lee stated that the Board does have jurisdiction over this matter as Mr. Luke is a 
registered pharmacist with the Board and he did receive the accusation. 
 
Ms. Lee questioned Mr. Luke regarding his employment at St. Rose, and asked if he was 
aware of the investigation by the pharmacist and the Hospital. Mr. Luke stated that he was 
aware of the investigation. Mr. Luke admitted diversion of medications. 
 
Mr. Luke read into the record an apology letter.  Ms. Lee moved to admit into the record Mr. 
Luke’s apology letter as Exhibit 1.  
 
President Park admitted into the record Exhibit 1. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to make findings of fact consistent with paragraphs 1-6 of 

the Accusation. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
Board action 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to make conclusions of law consistent with paragraphs 7-

12 of the Accusation.  
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 

32



 

11 

 

 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
Board Action:   
 
Motion:  Wayne Mitchell moved to revoke Paul Luke’s Certificate of Registration No.  
  15314, and stay the revocation, and be placed on probation for five years with 

following conditions; cannot be managing pharmacist, supervising pharmacist 
must submit a yearly evaluation to the Board, must report the discipline to 
potential employers. 

 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
After Board discussion, Wayne Mitchell rescinded the motion, and Rolf Zakariassen agreed.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to revoke Paul Luke’s Certificate of Registration No. 15314 

and that Mr. Luke may not petition for reinstatement for one year. 
 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 
Aye:  Park, Tomasso, Freitas, Jacobo, Zakariassen 
 
Nay:   Mitchell, Tejero 
 
Action: Motion carries.  
 

F. Theodore Herrera      (19-079-IN-S) 
 
These items were continued. 
 

G. Jerald Clyde, RPH      (19-061-RPH-S) 
H. Smith’s Pharmacy #336     (19-061-PH-S) 

 
These items were continued. 
 

I. Abdel M. Khalek, MD     (19-003-CS-A-S) 
J. Robert Chancellor, MD     (19-003-CS-B-S) 
K. Lindsay Hoffman, PA-C     (19-003-CS-C-S) 

 
This matter was heard in conjunction with Agenda Item 6A. 
 
Brett Kandt prosecuted the case on behalf of the State. Lindsay Hoffman, Robert Chancellor 
and Vinay Bararia appeared and were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions 
or offering testimony.  
 

33



 

12 

 

E. Brent Bryson appeared as counsel representing Ms. Hoffman, Mr. Chancellor, and Mr. 
Bararia. 
 
Mr. Kandt requested authorization to pursue injunctive relief against the respondents should it 
be deemed necessary. Mr. Bryson objected, arguing that the requirements for issuing an 
injunction were not present.  Mr. Kandt rebutted that the Board staff would be required to 
make the necessary showing to a court when seeking injunctive relief.  Board counsel Sophia 
Long concurred with Mr. Kandt. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to authorize Board staff to seek injunctive relief if 

necessary.  
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell. 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Bryson represented that respondents Bararia, Chancellor, and Hoffman had executed 
written waivers for joint representation.  Mr. Kandt canvassed respondents Bararia, 
Chancellor, and Hoffman individually on the record regarding their joint representation by Mr. 
Bryson.  Bararia knowingly and voluntarily waived any potential conflict and consented to joint 
representation.  Chancellor knowingly and voluntarily waived any potential conflict and 
consented to joint representation. Hoffman knowingly and voluntarily waived any potential 
conflict and consented to joint representation.  
 
The parties stipulated on the record to continue this matter. 
 

L. Bernard Kofi Addo-Quaye, MD    (19-242-CS-A-S) 
M. Mukwel Aiyuk, APRN     (19-242-CS-B-S) 
N. Solomon Joshua, APRN     (19-242-CS-C-S) 

 
This matter was heard in conjunction with Agenda Item 6B. 
 
Courtney Lee prosecuted the case on behalf of the State. John Hunt appeared as counsel 
representing respondent Victor Bruce.  Maria Nutile appeared as counsel representing 
respondent Bernard Kofi Addo-Quaye.  Ms. Lee stated that Lyn Beggs is representing 
respondent Mukwel Aiyuk.  David Krawczyk appeared as counsel representing Mr. Joshua.   
Solomon Joshua appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Lee provided background on the case regarding Solomon Joshua, who was an 
independent contractor and/or employed by TrimCare during the relevant timeframes in 
question. Mr. Joshua is alleged to have unlawfully prescribed controlled 
substances/dangerous drugs under Dr. Addo-Quaye’s name and credentials for at least three 
patients from October 30, 2018 to December 19, 2018.  
 

34



 

13 

 

Ms. Lee presented a proposed Stipulation and Order for the Board’s consideration, that Mr. 
Joshua shall receive a public reprimand, pay a $1000 fine to the State of Nevada, pay $950 
to partially reimburse the Board for recoverable attorney’s fees and costs, that Mr. Joshua not 
work with Dr. Bruce, and comply with all State and Federal Laws.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to accept the Stipulation and Order regarding Soloman 

Joshua as presented. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
Courtney Lee requested authorization to pursue injunctive relief against the remaining 
respondents should it be deemed necessary. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to authorize Board Staff to seek injunctive relief if 

necessary. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
The parties stipulated on the record to continue this matter. 
 
6. Appeal hearings for citation and fine pursuant to NRS 639.2895(2).  
 

A. Vinay Kumar Bararia, MD      (19-003-CS-D-S) 
 
This Agenda Item was heard in conjunction with Item 5I, 5J, and 5K.  
 

B. Victor Bruce, MD      (19-242-CS-D-S) 
 
This Agenda Item was heard in conjunction with Item 5L, 5M, and 5N. 
 
7. Petition for Reinstatement of Controlled Substance Registration and Request to 

Appear Before the Board – Appearance.  
 
Joyce P. Chang, MD      (18-029-CS-S) 
 

Courtney Lee recused herself from participation in this matter.  
 
Joyce P. Chang appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony. The Board previously entered an Order on October 10, 2018, revoking Dr. 

35



 

14 

 

Chang’s controlled substance registration, Certificate of Registration No. CS15881, and 
dispensing practitioner registration, Certificate of Registration No. PD00340.  Dr. Chang 
answered questions and gave testimony regarding her petition for reinstatement of her 
controlled substance registration. Dr. Chang does not currently have a DEA registration. 
 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Gener Tejero moved to reinstate Dr. Chang’s controlled substance registration 

without restrictions. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
 

8. Applications for Controlled Substance Registration – Appearance.   
 
A. Roger Belcourt 

 
Roger Belcourt appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Dr. Belcourt stated that he is here to make disclosures on his application for a Controlled 
Substance registration. 
 
Ms. Long provided background information on the disclosure for the application; in 1988 he 
was arrested for self-prescribing controlled substances and discipline ensued. In 1993 he 
finished a counseling program and has been in additional programs since then. In 2008 Dr. 
Belcourt had a relapse and self-reported his dependence on a controlled substance.  
 
Dr. Belcourt stated that he had a DEA in California to prescribe controlled substances and 
has not had issues.  
 
Dr. Belcourt answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the Controlled Substance Registration 

application for Roger Belcourt. 
 
Second: Rolf Zackariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

B. Andrew Podley 
 

36



 

15 

 

Andrew Podley appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Dr. Podley stated that he is here to make disclosures on his application for Controlled 
Substance Registration. 
 
Dr. Podley disclosed that he was arrested for a DUI in 2018. He was acquitted and charges 
were dropped. In 2012, Dr. Podley was charged with a misdemeanor- a small amount of 
cannabis and paraphernalia was in the car when he was pulled over. He stated that he has 
not been convicted of any felonies or misdemeanors since.  
 
Dr. Podley answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion:  Wayne Mitchell moved to approve the Controlled Substance Registration 

application for Andrew Podley.  
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

 
9. Applications for Pharmacist Registration by Examination – Appearance.   

 
A. Tosin A. Adelakun 

 
Tosin Adelakun appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Long provided background information, that in April 2014 he was a passenger in a 
vehicle that contained marijuana, but the case was later dismissed. 
 
Mr. Adelakun stated that Ms. Long’s summary is accurate and the incident occurred before 
he was considering pharmacy school. Mr. Adelakun stated that he has made significant 
changes in his personal life to avoid this type of situation in the future. 
 
Mr. Adelakun answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Application for Pharmacist Registration by 

Examination for Tosin Adelakun. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 

37



 

16 

 

 
B. Mark Harward 

 
Mark Harward appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Long provided background that Mr. Harward in 2012 took money from the cash register. 
He pled guilty to the accusation. In 2013 he was forced to retire his Florida license and then 
later reapplied. There were restrictions on his license in Utah but those restrictions have 
since been lifted. 
 
Mr. Harward stated that he has the opportunity to work at a pharmacy in Nevada and would 
like the opportunity to be licensed in Nevada.  
 
Mr. Harward answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moves to approve the Application for Pharmacist Registration by 

Examination for Mr. Harward. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

C. Michael Shimoide 
 
This matter has been continued. 
 

 
10. Applications for Pharmacist Registration by Reciprocation – Appearance.   

 
Gabriel Castaneda 
 

Gabriel Castaneda appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions 
or offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Long provided background information that Mr. Castaneda in 2008 practiced outside his 
scope of licensure as a pharmaceutical technician in Texas which resulted in discipline.  
 
Mr. Castaneda stated that Ms. Long’s summary is accurate and there have been no issues 
since then. 
 
Mr. Castaneda answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 

38



 

17 

 

Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the application for Pharmacist Registration by 
Reciprocation for Mr. Castaneda. 

 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
 

11. Application for Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Prescribe Registration – 
Appearance.   
 
A. Patrick Smith, APRN 

 
Patrick Smith appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Mr. Smith disclosed an arrest in 1997 for inhaling fumes, in 2002 he was charged with a 
misdemeanor for possession of marijuana which was later dismissed, and then in 2005 he 
was charged with reckless driving which was later dismissed. For the last 15 years he has 
abstained from alcohol or other substances, and has made changes to avoid encounters with 
the law in the future.  
 
Mr. Smith answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the application for Advanced Practice 

Registered Nurse Prescribe Registration for Patrick Smith. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

B. Natalie Wynn, APRN 
 
Natalie Wynn appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony. 
 
Bridget Kelly appeared as counsel representing Ms. Wynn. 
 
Ms. Long provided background on the matter, that Ms. Wynn was arrested on suspicion of 
driving under the influence, possession of a dangerous drug without a prescription, which 
was later dropped. In July of 2019 she was charged with a misdemeanor driving under the 
influence and failing to maintain a travel lane. This case is currently pending.  
 
Ms. Wynn stated that she is a recent graduate and working at a few different locations and 
provided insight into the events of the arrests and what is being done to rectify the past.  

39



 

18 

 

Ms. Wynn answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve the Controlled Substance Registration 

application for Ms. Wynn pending a positive PRN-PRN evaluation. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
12. Application for Physician’s Assistant Prescribe Registration – Appearance.   

 
Tammy Hankins, PA 
 

Tammy Hankins appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Hankins disclosed her past criminal history and interactions with law enforcement and 
other state licensing boards. 
 
Mr. Kandt recommended that full documentation of the various criminal prosecutions and 
their dispositions, and all administrative charges and dispositions, be provided to the Board 
for review of application. 
 
President Park offered Ms. Hankins the option to table the application to provide the Board 
with all legal and administrative documentation from her disclosures. 
 
Ms. Hankins accepted the offer to table the application.  
 
The Board tabled this matter at Ms. Hankins request.  
 
13. Application for Pharmacist Registration Renewal – Appearance.   

 
Mark Robertson 
 

Mark Roberston appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Long provided background, that in November 2017 the Arizona Board of Pharmacy 
received a complaint about a pharmacy and Mr. Robertson was the pharmacist in charge at 
the time. After investigation the Arizona Board imposed disipline on Mr. Robertson’s license.  
 
Mr. Robertson provided insight into the Arizona discipline charges. The pharmacy was 
expecting to extend their lease which did not happen and they were forced to find a new 
location. Due to the rush in change of location, the pharmacy did not provide notice of change 
of address to the Arizona Board of Pharmacy in the required time.  

40



 

19 

 

 
Mr. Robertson answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the Pharmacist Registration Renewal for Mark 

Robertson.  
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
14. Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician Registration Renewal – Appearance.   

 
Eyosias Bekele 
 

Eyosias Bekele appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Long provided background information, that in 2018 Mr. Bekele received a DUI. 
 
Mr. Bekele disclosed that he was pulled over for driving under the influence, and provided 
insight into the incident. Community service was completed as well as additional driving 
classes. 
 
Mr. Bekele answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  

 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve the Pharmaceutical Technician Registration 

Renewal for Eyosias Bekele pending a positive evaluation from PRN-PRN. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 

 
 

15. Application for Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Dispensing Registration – 
Appearance.  

 
John Phoenix, APRN 

 
John Phoenix appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Tracy Singh appeared as counsel representing Mr. Phoenix.  
 

41



 

20 

 

Mr. Kandt provided background on the matter. On March 5, 2020, Mr. Phoenix was served 
with a notice to cease and desist dispensing dangerous drugs, specifically clinical trial 
medications, for Nevada patients without a valid registration, and was issued a citation and  
$5000 fine. He paid the fine and submitted a new application for a dispensing registration. Mr. 
Phoenix currently holds a limited temporary registration which expires September 3rd, 2020.  
 
Ms. Singh stated that there is no criminal history, there is no substance abuse history, and 
Mr. Phoenix has been involved in medication research and trials for many years. Mr. Phoenix 
has tried to stay in compliance with Nevada law and licensure. As his trial medications are 
related to HIV, the license to dispense is necessary for the clinical trials and clinical studies. 
 
Mr. Phoenix answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve the APRN Dispensing Registration 

application for John Phoenix. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
 

16. Application for Intern Registration – Appearance.   
 
Dustin Godoy 
 

President Park recused herself from this matter due to her employer’s relationship with the 
respondent. 
 
Dustin Godoy appeared and was sworn by Acting President Wayne Mitchell prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Godoy disclosed a DUI that happened in April of 2020. This is the first incident with the 
law and Mr. Godoy stated that he no longer drinks and will not drink in the future.  
 
Mr. Godoy answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to approve the Pharmacy Intern Application for Dustin 

Godoy with no restrictions. 
 
Second: Gener Tejero 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

42



 

21 

 

17. Applications for Out-of-State  Compounding Pharmacy License – Appearance 
  

A. APS Pharmacy – Palm Harbor, FL 
 
Dave Hill, Chief Executive Officer, and George Chrysakis, managing pharmacist, appeared 
and were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Joe Dodge, Inspector, questioned APS Pharmacy, about but not limited to, products to be 
shipped into Nevada, specifically sterile compounded medications.  
 
Mr. Dodge questioned Mr. Chrysakis regarding the policies of APS Pharmacy for testing of 
compounded medications, reporting, consultations, filters, and failed tests.  Mr. Chrysakis 
answered to the best of his ability and suggested that some of these questions be directed to 
the Quality Assurance department.  
 
Mr. Dodge stated to the Board that some questions have not been answered to his 
satisfaction.  
 
President Park offered to table this application to a date that the QA Pharmacist is able to 
attend and present before the Board. The offer was accepted. 
 
The Board tabled this matter at Mr. Hill’s request.  
 

B. Sisu Healthcare Solutions, Inc. – Tempe, AZ 
 
Mike Smith, managing pharmacist, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Mr. Smith stated that he emailed a letter of authorization to the Board to appear and speak on 
behalf of Sisu Health Care Solutions. 
 
Mr. Smith provided the Board with his employment and pharmacy history. 
 
Mr. Dodge questioned Mr. Smith about products to be shipped into the state of Nevada. Mr. 
Smith stated that IV medications will be the most common sterile compounded medications 
shipped into Nevada. Mr. Smith provided insight into procedures about safe shipping of 
sterile compounded medications. 
 
Mr. Dodge questioned Mr. Smith about the operations and intensions of Sisu Health Care 
Solutions.  
 
Mr. Smith answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the Out-of-State  Compounding Pharmacy 

License application for Sisu Health Care Solutions. 

43



 

22 

 

 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
18. Applications for Out-of-State  Pharmacy License – Appearance  
 

A. Carepharm Pharmacy, LTC – Houston, TX 
 
Nancy Harris, managing pharmacist, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Christopher Miller, attorney, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Long provided background that in 2019 the pharmacy was operating without a managing 
pharmacist, and that Carepharm Pharmacy was later placed on probation for 2 years, 
required to pay a fee, and required to follow all State and Federal Laws.  
 
In August of 2020 there was a request to repeal the discipline. The repeal was granted and 
Carepharm Pharmacy was granted an early release on probation. 
 
Mr. Miller disclosed the reason behind not having a managing pharmacist and what has been 
done to fix the issue.  
 
Mr. Miller answered questions regarding the services that will be provided to patients in 
Nevada. 
 
Ms. Harris and Mr. Miller answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the Out-of-State Pharmacy License 

application for Carepharm Pharmacy, LTC. 
 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

B. Script2U LLC – Memphis, TN 
C. ScriptHero Pharmacy LLC – Columbus, OH 

 
Roger Morris, attorney representing McKesson, Nick Meza, attorney representing McKesson, 
Kyle Dresbach, managing pharmacist, and Therese Twomey, managing pharmacist 
appeared. 
 

44



 

23 

 

Mr. Wuest provided background for these two Agenda Items, that they are part of a large 
pharmacy company. Because of this there is discipline that needs to be disclosed. 
 
Mr. Morris disclosed the DEA Settlement from 2017 that occurred due to failure to report 
suspicious ordering. Mr. Morris talked about how future situations will be rectified, such as not 
filling suspicious orders and working more closely with the DEA when suspicions do arise. 
 
Mr. Morris answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Out-of-State Pharmacy License 

applications for Script2U LLC and ScriptHero Pharmacy LLC. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
 
19. Application for Out-of-State Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License –  

Appearance. 
 
Medical Action Industries, Inc. – Arden, NC 

 
President Park swore in Sarah Golas in conjunction with Agenda Item 22E, prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Wuest clarified to the Board that the application is not the correct application for this 
entity. 
 
This item has been continued upon receipt of the correct application. 

 
20. Application for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License – 

Appearance  
 
Nevada Prime Healthcare LLC – Reno, NV 

 
Jared Koler, owner, appeared and was sworn by President Park, prior to answering questions 
and offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Long provided background information, that Mr. Koler has personal history disclosures 
that need to be made and the application amended to reflect these disclosures.  
 
Mr. Koler stated that he is happy to amend the application to reflect the arrest in 2000 for 
possession of marijuana in Utah.  
 

45



 

24 

 

Mr. Koler answered questions regarding services to be provided by Nevada Prime 
Healthcare, as well as products provided, and his personal work history. 
 
Mr. Koler answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the application for Nevada Medical, Devices, 

Equipment and Gases License for Nevada Prime Healthcare LLC.  
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 

 
 

21. Application for Nevada Wholesaler License – Appearance  
 

MD Logistics, LLC – Reno, NV 
 
Robert Grange, Director of Quality and Regulatory Affairs, and Roland Rock, Vice President 
of the Midwest Region, appeared and were sworn by President Park prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Long provided background that MD Logistics, LLC is here for approval of an application 
for ownership and name change. MD Logistics is VAWD certified.  
 
Mr. Grange stated that a smaller company is being bought out by Nippon Express to better 
meet the demands of the public.  
 
Mr. Rock stated to the Board that MD Logistics will continue as a wholesale business. 
 
Mr. Grange and Mr. Rock answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. A letter of 
authorization from Dirk Clark will be provided to the Board of Pharmacy prior to MD Logistics 
being licensed.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the Nevada Wholesaler License application 

for Ownership and Name change, for MD Logistics, LLC. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
 
22. Applications for Out-of-State  Wholesaler License – Appearance   

 

46



 

25 

 

Background Check Not Required by Law.  
 
22.1 Distributor for Single Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(e))  

None  
 
22.2 Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(d)) 
 
A. Aurolife Pharma LLC – Dayton, NJ 

 
Jennifer Schneider, State Licensing Service, appeared and was sworn by President Park 
prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
A letter of Limited Power of Attorney was sent to Courtney Lee, allowing Ms. Schneider to 
represent and answer for Aurolife Pharma LLC. 
 
Ms. Schneider disclosed discipline for the owner AuroBindo.  
 
Ms. Schneider answered questions regarding products and controlled substances to be 
provided to patients in Nevada. 
 
Ms. Schneider answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Out-of-State Wholesaler License for 

Aurolife Pharma LLC. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

B. Clinical Solutions Wholesale, LLC – Franklin, TN 
 
Jami Scannell, Regulatory Specialist, and Christi Throneberry, CEO, appeared and were 
sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated to the Board that Clinical Solutions Wholesale LLC is here to disclose 
discipline on their application.  
 
Ms. Throneberry stated that in 2014 they had a late renewal on their license which they self-
reported. During the time their license was expired, they did ship some medications. 
 
Ms. Throneberry answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 

47



 

26 

 

Motion: Gener Tejero moved to approve the Out-of-State Wholesaler License 
application for Clinical Solutions Wholesale, LLC. 

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 

C. Exelan Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Boca Raton, FL 
 
Jennifer Schneider, State Licensing Services, and Terri Arndt, Facility Manager, appeared 
and were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated to the Board that Exelan Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is appearing to disclose 
disciplinary action on their application. 
 
Ms. Schneider disclosed that Exelan Pharmaceuticals, Inc, received administrative action on 
their license for improper record keeping in Florida, as well as late notification of change of 
address. There was also an administrative fine of $500 for the New Hampshire Board of 
Pharmacy due to untimely notice of location change. 
 
Ms. Schneider stated that she does have a letter for Limited Power of Attorney to speak on 
behalf of Exelan Pharmaceuticals which will be sent to Courtney Lee.  
 
Ms. Schneider answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Jade Jacobo was excused from the meeting September 3rd, 2020 at 1:30pm. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Out-of-State Wholesaler License 

application for Exelan Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

D. Mizner BioScience, LLC – Boca Raton, FL 
 
Joseph Anzalone, Chief Operating Officer, and Laura Koman, legal counsel, appeared and 
were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Wuest noted to the Board that Mizner BioScience has disclosures to make on their 
application. 
 
Mr. Anzalone provided the Board with a history of the company and made the appropriate 
disclosures regarding discipline on licensure in other states. Mr. Anzalone discussed changes 
made to resolve the issues regarding the past discipline. 

48



 

27 

 

 
Mr. Anzalone answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Gener Tejero moved to approve the Out-of-State Wholesaler License 

application for Mizner BioScience, LLC. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

 
22.3 Publicly Traded (NAC 639.593(7)(a)) 
   None 
 
22.4 VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c)) 
 
E. Owens & Minor Distribution, Inc. – Hebron, KY 
 

Sarah Golas, Manager of Licensing, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Golas stated that there is discipline action dating from 2002 to present. Discipline is 
related to tardiness on reporting change of Designated Representative in a timely matter. To 
address the issue Ms. Golas stated that a biannual training for designated representatives 
has been instituted, as well as policy regarding the reading and signing off Prescription 
Monitoring Program reports.   
 
Ms. Golas answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Out-of-State Wholesaler License 

application for Owens & Minor Distribution Inc. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
 
22.5 Manufacturer and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c) and (d)) 

  None 
 

22.6 Publicly Traded and Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (d)) 
  None 

 

49



 

28 

 

22.7 Publicly Traded and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (c)) 
 
F. Covetrus North America – Aurora, CO 
 

Hilary Wilson, from the Regulatory and Quality Affairs Department, appeared and was sworn 
by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Wilson disclosed the administrative action taken on Covetrus North America and 
discussed the changes made to rectify the situation. 
 
Ms. Wilson answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to approve the Agenda Items 22F and 22G. 
 
Second: Gener Tejero  
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
G. Covetrus North America – Southaven, MS 

 
This item was heard with Agenda Item 22F. 

 
22.8 Background checks completed in compliance with NRS 639.500. No 

Disqualifying Events. 
 
H. Aleracare Wholesale, LLC – Phoenix, AZ 

 
Paul Vasiliauskas, CEO of Aleracare Wholesale, LLC, appeared and was sworn by President 
Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Mr. Vasiliauskas disclosed an arrest from 1999 for a DUI charge that has since been closed. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that this disclosure was consistent with the results of the background check. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the application for Aleracare Wholesale, LLC. 
 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

I. Janus Trade Group LLC – Eatontown, NJ 
 

50



 

29 

 

Stewart Husney, Eli Abisror, and Michael Antar, co-owners, appeared and were sworn by 
President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Wuest provided background, that Janus Trade Group LLC has some pending litigations 
and past discipline that needs to be disclosed to the Board. 
 
Mr. Husney disclosed to the Board that one of the litigations involves some money that was 
lent out and not returned. In 2016 there was a purchase from a company that was not 
licensed in the State. Discipline occurred.  
 
Mr. Antar and Mr. Abisror answered questions about products sold by Janus Trade Group to 
the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Gener Tejero moved to approve the Out-of-State Wholesaler License 

application for Janus Trade Group LLC. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas  
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

 
23. Application for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility – Appearance 

 
Farmakeio Outsourcing – Southlake, TX  
 

Justin Graves, Quality Director, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Mr. Dodge questioned Mr. Graves regarding products and services provided by Farmakeio 
and the FDA Inspection that was completed in October of 2019.  
 
Mr. Graves answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Gener Tejero moved to approve the Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility License 

application for Farmakeio Outsourcing Facility. They are to send the Board 
correspondence between the facility and DEA. 

 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
 

24. Application for Nevada Pharmacy License – Appearance 

51



 

30 

 

 
Off-Site Rampart Pharmacy – Winnemucca, NV 
 

Tiffany Love, Chief Operating Officer, and David Simsek, Director of Pharmacy, appeared 
and were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Mr. Simsek stated that this license would be for emergency purposes only, to allow the 
hospital and hospital pharmacy to be extended if need be. 
 
Ms. Love and Mr. Simsek answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the Nevada Pharmacy License application for 

Off-Site Rampart Pharmacy.  
 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
 
25. Rehearing of Order in Case No. 20-008-PT-S on Application of Jevons Wang pursuant 

to NRS 639.252  
 
This item has been continued.  
 
26. Discussion and possible action on Bill Draft Request for 2021 Nevada Legislative 

Session to amend NRS Chapter 639 regarding the licensing and regulation of the 
practice of pharmacy, including increasing fees for initial licensure and biennial 
renewal of a wholesaler license, and requiring criminal background checks for initial 
registration as a pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician.  

 
Mr. Kandt provided overview of the bill draft request, explaining that the Legislature’s Sunset  
Subcommittee recommended that the Board analyze its fee structure and revise fees to the  
extent necessary to support its operations. Based upon this recommendation the BDR  
amends NRS 639.170 to increase the maximum statutory fee for the licensure of wholesalers 
from $500 to $1000. Kandt explained that the Governor’s Division of Internal Audits in Audit 
No. 20-05 recommended that criminal background checks for be required for pharmacists,  
pharmaceutical technicians and pharmaceutical technicians in training. This would require  
statutory authorization and the BDR provides this.  The BDR also makes various conforming  
changes and clarifies existing statutory provisions. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to approve the language of the bill draft request. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 

52



 

31 

 

 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Rolf Zakariassen and Wayne Mitchell were excused from the meeting, September 3, 2020 at  
3:30pm. 
 
27. Discussion and Possible Action on Advisory Opinion pursuant to NAC 639.150 in 

response to petition submitted by the Nevada Association of Nurse Anesthetists on 
authority of CRNAs to possess and administer anesthetic agents to patients.  

 
Mr. Kandt reminded the Board that earlier this year the Nevada Association of Nurse  
Anesthetists submitted a petition for an advisory opinion pursuant to NAC 639.150 on the  
authority of CRNAs to possess and administer anesthetic agents to patients.  The Board at  
the January meeting directed that he draft a proposed advisory opinion. 

Mr. Kandt presented a proposed advisory opinion, that concluded that CRNAs may only 
possess and administer anesthetic agents to patients “at the direction” of a practitioner or 
“pursuant to a chart order” and the Board lacks the statutory authority to license CRNAs to 
select and order anesthetic agents from a licensed institutional pharmacy in order to possess 
and administer these agents to patients of the medical facility in any manner that conflicts 
with NRS 453.375(1)(b) and NRS 454.213(1)(c). 
 
Chelsea Adams, from the Nevada Association of Nurse Anesthetists, commented that they  
are still petitioning for legislative clarification on particular aspects of the law in question. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to approve the advisory opinion as offered by legal 

counsel.  
 
Second: Gener Tejero  
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
28. Discussion and possible action on medical interns and residents’ controlled substance 

registration fee  
 
Mr. Wuest provided the Board with background that in October of 2019 there was a fee  
increase for the Controlled Substances Registration for practitioners. The medical schools  
were unaware of the fee changes and did not budget for this increase for the medical interns  
and medical residents. Board staff maintained the $80 fee.  
 
Megan Courtney, UNLV Medical School, stated that Mr. Wuest’s summary is correct and  
accurate. Ms. Courtney provided the Board with the financial implications to the State if  
interns and residents were to be required to pay the increased fee of $200 for a Controlled  
Substance Registration. 
 

53



 

32 

 

Angela Shaw, representing UNR Medical School, agrees with Ms. Courtney’s statement  
about the implications of a fee increase to the state of Nevada as well as future doctors  
coming into the state. 
 
Ms. Courtney answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to keep the Intern and Resident fees for Controlled 

Substance Registration at $80 and not increase them to $200.  
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
29. Annual review to consider and suggest amendments to and deletions from the 

provisions of NAC 639.501-.5019  
 
Leo Basch, Board Investigator, provided background on the regulations regarding the annual  
review of NAC 639.501-.5019. He recommended discontinuing the Workplace Assessment  
Form. 
 
Mr. Wuest agreed with Mr. Basch.  
 
30. Discussion and possible action on approval of Immunize Nevada - Nevada 

Immunization Learning Exchange - CE Programs  
 
Breanne Van Dyne, Education Manager, appeared and presented potential CE opportunities 
for pharmaceutical technicians. Immunize Nevada is the only immunizing organization to 
provide specific immunizing CE’s. 
 
Ms. Van Dyne is seeking approval of the CE’s in order to secure trainers to provide the in- 
person training and hands on experience in immunization for the state of Nevada. 
 
Ms. VanDyne answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to approve the CE program for three years. 
 
Second: Rolf Zakarriassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
 
31. Approval of Revised Wholesaler Application  
 

54



 

33 

 

This matter has been continued. 
 
32. Petition for Exemption from the requirement of a lavatory with toilet and washbasin 

within or adjoining the pharmacy. NAC 639.530(4).  
 
 Rx2U, LLC. – Las Vegas, NV 
 
Krystal Freitas disclosed that the owner is a former classmate, but she is able to participate  
fairly and without bias.  
 
Mr. Wuest provided background information that the Board had previously approved a license  
but upon inspection, the location did not meet the law requirements. The law does present  
the option to waive the particular issue on the Petition for Exemption of a lavatory with toilet 
and washbasin within or adjoining the pharmacy. 
 
Maryam Rastkerdar, Pharmacist, appeared to answer questions regarding the petition.  
 
Board discussed the regulation and conferred with Board counsel on the extent of the  
Board’s authority to grant a waiver under NAC 639.530(4).  
 
The Board determined that the variance request cannot be considered as Rx2U, LLC is not a  
remodeled pharmacy eligible to make the request. 
 
33. General Counsel Report.  Note: The Board may exclude the public for a report on 

potential or existing litigation pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2). 
 
34. Executive Secretary Report: 
 

A. Financial Report 
 
Mr. Wuest presented the Financial Report to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 

B. Issuance of Temporary Licenses and Registrations 
 
There were four temporary licenses and registrations issued since the last meeting. 
 

C. Meetings with Other Health Care Regulatory Boards 
D. COVID-19 Response 

• Emergency Regulation Update 
 
Mr. Wuest reported to the Board that Board Staff has supported the State efforts with 
Remdesavir. Board staff meets weekly with FEMA and HHS and Amerisource to help allocate 
the medication to the facilities that are most in need. These efforts will continue through 
September 2020. 
 

E. Presentation to GME UNLV 
F. Licensing Software Update 

55



 

34 

 

Mr. Wuest presented to the Board updates to the Licensing Software.   
 

G. Licensing Activities Report 
 
Mr. Wuest stated to the Board that license renewals have begun.  
 

H. PMP Integration 
 
President Park thanked the Board staff for their efforts in assisting the state, as well as their 
efforts in moving the regulation along to allow pharmaceutical technicians the authority to 
immunize under the supervision of the pharmacist.  

  PUBLIC HEARING  

Thursday September 3, 2020 – 9:00 am 
 
35. Notice of Proposed Regulation Public Hearing Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  

 
 

A. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.520 Schedule II.  The 
proposed amendment adds such drug products to the list of controlled substances in 
schedule II in conformity with the federal regulations of the Uniform Controlled 
Substances Act.  (LCB File No. R084-20) 

 
Mr. Wuest stated that the proposed amendments were requested by the State’s crime labs 
based upon new derivatives of drugs and compounds. Mr. Wuest reminded the Board that 
this language has already been through workshop. 
 
President Park opened the Public Comment. 
 
There was no Public Comment. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to adopt LCB File No. R084-20. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
 

B. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639: Pharmaceutical 
Technician Ability to Administer Immunizations.  The proposed amendment will 
authorize a pharmaceutical technician with appropriate training to administer 
immunizations under the direct supervision of a pharmacist.  (LCB File No. R142-20)   

 
Ms. Long stated that LCB reverted the routes of administration back to the original draft  

56



 

35 

 

language.  
 
President Park opened the floor for Public Comment.  
 
Ms. Long stated that there were some written comments that are available on the Board  
Website.  
 
Lauren Paul, CVS Health, stated that she is in support of the proposed language. 
 
Mary Staples, National Association of Chain Drug Stores, stated that she is also in favor of  
the language and to not delay this amendment. 
 
Jessica Langley, Coalition for the Advancement of Pharmacy Technician Practitioners,  
stated that she is in favor of this amendment and the benefit it will be to the public. 
 
Liz MacMenamin, RAN, stated that she is in favor of the amendment and is in support of  
allowing technicians to administer immunizations.  
 
Ademola Are, National Community Pharmacist Association, stated that he is in support of the  
language and thanked the Board for their effort in this amendment.  
 
President Park closed Public Comment. 
 
Mr. Tomasso read into the record a public comment that was against allowing pharmaceutical 
technicians the authority to administer immunizations.  
 
The Board discussed current policies on direct supervision, and future plans on  
pharmaceutical technician training as well as continued direct supervision. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to adopt LCB File No. R142-20 
 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
 

  WORKSHOP  
 

Thursday September 3, 2020 – 9:00 am 
 

36. Notice of Proposed Regulation Workshop Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  
 

Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.742, 639.743, 639.744. 
and 639.745:  Dispensing Practitioners.  The proposed amendments will modify the 
supervision of dispensing technician by dispensing practitioners. These amendments 

57



 

36 

 

will authorize dispensing practitioners in group practices to share inventory of certain 
medications and centralize activities. The proposed amendments will increase the fees 
for the application for an initial registration, and the biennial renewal of a registration, 
as a registered dispensing technician. 
 

Mr. Wuest presented background on the requested regulation. 
 
President Park opened the floor to Public Comment.  
 
Rupesh Parikh, Comprehensive Cancer Centers, read a prepared statement into the record 
regarding the ability of group practices to streamline patient care by having one central 
location of drugs to be dispensed, available to all dispensing doctors listed on the application 
for the site.  
 
Liz MacMenamin, RAN, commented to the Board that she was present in 2003 when this law 
was first enacted and the reasoning behind it. By allowing more freedom in dispensing by 
doctors, they are in essence practicing pharmacy which is out of their scope.  
 
Rachel Dobbs, Vice President of Operations with Activate Healthcare, stated that she is in 
support of the proposed changes and the potential benefit of efficiency in patient care. 
 
Brad Raghasin, Pharmacist, stated that medications will only be dispensed by licensed 
practitioners.  
 
The Board discussed the potential benefits of change in patient care and public wellbeing.  
 
The Board directed staff to notice a public workshop.  
 
37. Request for Approval of Change of Managing pharmacist pursuant to NRS 639.220  
 
 ACRx Specialty Pharmacy  
 
This matter has been continued. 
 
38. Adoption of Emergency Regulation pursuant to NRS233B.0613 
 

Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639: Pharmaceutical technician 
Ability to Administer Immunizations. The proposed emergency amendment in 
response to COVID-19 will authorize a pharmaceutical technician with appropriate 
training to administer immunizations under the direct supervision of a pharmacist. 
(LCB File No. R142-20) 

 
President Park opened the floor to Public Comment.  
 
Dave Wuest provided insight into the emergency regulation. 

58



 

37 

 

Liz MacMenamin, RAN, thanked the Board for moving this emergency regulation through 
quickly to prepare the State for the upcoming flu season and potential COVID-19 vaccine 
expected to arrive soon. 
 
Mary Staples, National Association for Chain Drug Stores, thanked the Board for their 
cooperation in pushing the emergency regulation through as quickly as they have.  
 
The Board discussed when this regulation would go into effect and if this regulation will still 
be in effect during the peak of the flu season. 
 
President Park closed the floor to Public Comment.  
 
Board Action 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to adopt this emergency regulation. 
 
Second; Rolf Zakariassen. 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
39. Date and Location of Next Scheduled Board Meeting: 
 
  October 14-15, 2020 – Las Vegas, NV 
 
40. Public Comment 4:15 PM 
 
There was no Public Comment. 
 
41. Date and location of Next Scheduled Board Meeting  
   
  October 14-15, 2020- Las Vegas, NV 
 
42.  Adjournment 

59



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

60



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4A

61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4B

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4C

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4D

95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4E

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



4F

134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4G

144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4H

175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4I

185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4J

198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4K

208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4L

222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4M

245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4N

261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4O

271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4P

285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4Q

295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4R

303



304



305



306



307



308



309



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4S

310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4T

320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4U

329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4V

341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4W

352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4X

363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4Y

373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4Z

383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4AA

393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4BB

403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4CC

414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4DD

424



425



426



427



428



429



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4EE

430



431



432



433



434



435



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4FF

436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4GG

446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4HH

454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4II

470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



491



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4JJ

492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



504



505



506



507



508



509



510



511



512



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4KK

513



514



515



516



517



518



519



520



521



522



523



524



525



526



527



528



529



530



531



532



533



534



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4LL

535



536



537



538



539



540



541



542



543



544



545



546



547



548



549



550



551



552



553



554



555



556



557



558



559



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4MM

560



561



562



563



564



565



566



567



568



569



570



571



572



573



574



575



576



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4NN

577



578



579



580



581



582



583



584



585



586



587



588



589



590



591



592



593



594



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4OO

595



596



597



598



599



600



601



602



603



604



605



606



607



608



609



610



611



612



613



614



615



616



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4PP

617



618



619



620



621



622



623



624



625



626



627



628



629



630



631



632



633



634



635



636



637



638



639



640



641



642



643



644



645



646



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4QQ

647



648



649



650



651



652



653



654



655



656



657



658



659



660



661



662



663



664



665



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4RR

666



667



668



669



670



671



672



673



674



675



676



677



678



679



680



681



682



683



684



685



686



687



688



689



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4SS

690



691



692



693



694



695



696



697



698



699



700



701



702



703



704



705



706



707



708



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4TT

709



710



711



712



713



714



715



716



717



718



719



720



721



722



723



724



725



726



727



728



729



730



731



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4UU

732



733



734



735



736



737



738



739



740



741



742



743



744



745



746



747



748



749



750



751



752



753



754



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4VV

755



756



757



758



759



760



761



762



763



764



765



766



767



768



769



770



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4WW

771



772



773



774



775



776



777



778



779



780



781



782



783



784



785



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4XX

786



787



788



789



790



791



792



793



794



795



796



797



798



799



800



801



802



803



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4YY

804



805



806



807



808



809



810



811



812



813



814



815



816



817



818



819



820



821



822



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4ZZ

823



824



825



826



827



828



829



830



831



832



833



834



835



836



837



838



839



840



841



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4AAA

842



843



844



845



846



847



848



849



850



851



852



853



854



855



856



857



858



859



860



861



862



863



864



865



866



867



868



869



870



871



872



873



874



875



876



877



878



879



880



881



882



883



884



885



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4BBB

886



887



888



889



890



891



892



893



894



895



896



897



898



899



900



901



902



903



904



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4CCC

905



906



907



908



909



910



911



912



913



914



915



916



917



918



919



920



921



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4DDD

922



923



924



925



926



927



928



929



930



931



932



933



934



935



936



937



938



939



940



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4EEE

941



942



943



944



945



946



947



948



949



950



951



952



953



954



955



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

956



MATRIX GUIDELINE FOR 
DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

1st Action 2nd Action 3rd Action 

Non ingested error Letter Letter Hearing 
Counseling CE + 

No counseling $750.00 $1000.00 Hearing 

Attorney Fees and Costs Actual Actual  Actual 

Ingested no potential harm  $500.00 $1000.00 Hearing 

Ingested with potential harm 
or adverse outcomes $1000.00 Hearing Hearing 

Ingested with negative outcome 
or patient discomfort. 
No institution intervention  Hearing Hearing Hearing 

Ingested with significant negative 
health circumstance. 
With institution admit Hearing Hearing Hearing 

Ingested with death related to 
inappropriate drug therapy  Hearing Hearing Hearing 

The investigative committee will review each case individually and may recommend a board 
hearing, particularly with mitigating circumstances such as inappropriate technician 
involvement or pharmacist malfeasance. 

In certain cases with ingested errors and significant negative health circumstances requiring 
institutional care, the investigative committee recommendation will be a board hearing. 

In all death cases resulting from inappropriate drug therapy a board hearing will occur. 

Attorney fees and costs may be added in contested disciplinary actions requiring extensive 
attorney preparation and presentation and are not described in the above matrix. 

The board has directed that ownership may be charged in disciplinary cases.  In non-ingested 
errors copies of admonition letters will be sent to management.  Accumulative actions for 
ownership monitoring will be based upon a 3 year period.  All actions including non-ingested 
errors will be given a case number and monitored. 

The Board has the authority to fine from $0.00 to $10,000 for each Cause of Action. 

Updated May 2019 

579783957



958



959



960



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5A

961



962



963



964



965



966



967



968



969



970



971



972



973



974



975



976



977



978



979



980



981



982



983



984



985



986



987



988



989



990



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5B

991



992



993



994



995



996



997



998



999



1000



1001



1002



1003



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5C

1004



1005



1006



1007



1008



1009



1010



1011



1012



1013



1014



1015



1016



1017



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5D

1018



1019



1020



1021



1022



1023



1024



1025



1026



1027



1028



1029



1030



1031



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5E

1032



1033



1034



1035



1036



1037



1038



1039



1040



1041



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5F

1042



1043



1044



1045



1046



1047



1048



1049



1050



1051



1052



1053



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5G

1054



1055



1056



1057



1058



1059



1060



1061



1062



1063



1064



1065



1066



1067



1068



1069



1070



1071



1072



1073



1074



1075



1076



1077



1078



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5H

1079



1080



1081



1082



1083



1084



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5I

1085



1086



1087



1088



1089



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5J

1090



1091



1092



1093



1094



1095



1096



1097



1098



1099



1100



1101



1102



1103



1104



1105



1106



1107



1108



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5K

1109



1110



1111



1112



1113



1114



1115



1116



1117



1118



1119



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5L

1120



1121



1122



1123



1124



1125



1126



1127



1128



1129



1130



1131



1132



1133



1134



1135



1136



1137



1138



1139



1140



1141



1142



1143



1144



1145



1146



1147



1148



1149



1150



1151



1152



1153



1154



1155



1156



1157



1158



1159



1160



1161



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5M

1162



1163



1164



1165



1166



1167



1168



1169



1170



1171



1172



1173



1174



1175



1176



1177



1178



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6

1179



1180



1181



1182



1183



1184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

1185



1186



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8

1187



1188



1189



1190



1191



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9

1192



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9A

1193



1194



1195



1196



1197



1198



1199



1200



1201



1202



1203



1204



1205



1206



1207



1208



1209



1210



1211



1212



1213



1214



1215



1216



1217



1218



1219



1220



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9B

1221



1222



1223



1224



1225



1226



1227



1228



1229



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10

1230



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10A

1231



1232



1233



1234



1235



1236



1237



1238



1239



1240



1241



1242



1243



1244



1245



1246



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10B

1247



1248



1249



1250



1251



1252



1253



1254



1255



1256



1257



1258



1259



1260



1261



1262



1263



1264



1265



1266



1267



1268



1269



1270



1271



1272



1273



1274



1275



1276



1277



1278



1279



1280



1281



1282



1283



1284



1285



1286



1287



1288



1289



1290



1291



1292



1293



1294



1295



1296



1297



1298



1299



1300



1301



1302



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11

1303



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11A

1304



1305



1306



1307



1308



1309



1310



1311



1312



1313



1314



1315



1316



1317



1318



1319



1320



1321



1322



1323



1324



1325



1326



1327



1328



1329



1330



1331



1332



1333



1334



1335



1336



1337



1338



1339



1340



1341



1342



1343



1344



1345



1346



1347



1348



1349



1350



1351



1352



1353



1354



1355



1356



1357



1358



1359



1360



1361



1362



1363



1364



1365



1366



1367



1368



1369



1370



1371



1372



1373



1374



1375



1376



1377



1378



1379



1380



1381



1382



1383



1384



1385



1386



1387



1388



1389



1390



1391



1392



1393



1394



1395



1396



1397



1398



1399



1400



1401



1402



1403



1404



1405



1406



1407



1408



1409



1410



1411



1412



1413



1414



1415



1416



1417



1418



1419



1420



1421



1422



1423



1424



1425



1426



1427



1428



1429



1430



1431



1432



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11B

1433



1434



1435



1436



1437



1438



1439



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11C

1440



1441



1442



1443



1444



1445



1446



1447



1448



1449



1450



1451



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11D

1452



1453



1454



1455



1456



1457



1458



1459



1460



1461



1462



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11E

1463



1464



1465



1466



1467



1468



1469



1470



1471



1472



1473



1474



1475



1476



1477



1478



1479



1480



1481



1482



1483



1484



1485



1486



1487



1488



1489



1490



1491



1492



1493



1494



1495



1496



1497



1498



1499



1500



1501



1502



1503



1504



1505



1506



1507



1508



1509



1510



1511



1512



1513



1514



1515



1516



1517



1518



1519



1520



1521



1522



1523



1524



1525



1526



1527



1528



1529



1530



1531



1532



1533



1534



1535



1536



1537



1538



1539



1540



1541



1542



1543



1544



1545



1546



1547



1548



1549



1550



1551



1552



1553



1554



1555



1556



1557



1558



1559



1560



1561



1562



1563



1564



1565



1566



1567



1568



1569



1570



1571



1572



1573



1574



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11F

1575



1576



1577



1578



1579



1580



1581



1582



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11G

1583



1584



1585



1586



1587



1588



1589



1590



1591



1592



1593



1594



1595



1596



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12

1597



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12A

1598



1599



1600



1601



1602



1603



1604



1605



1606



1607



1608



1609



1610



1611



1612



1613



1614



1615



1616



1617



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12B

1618



1619



1620



1621



1622



1623



1624



1625



1626



1627



1628



1629



1630



1631



1632



1633



1634



1635



1636



1637



1638



1639



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12C

1640



1641



1642



1643



1644



1645



1646



1647



1648



1649



1650



1651



1652



1653



1654



1655



1656



1657



1658



1659



1660



1661



1662



1663



1664



1665



1666



1667



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12D

1668



1669



1670



1671



1672



1673



1674



1675



1676



1677



1678



1679



1680



1681



1682



1683



1684



1685



1686



1687



1688



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

1689



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14

1690



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14A

1691



1692



1693



1694



1695



1696



1697



1698



1699



1700



1701



1702



1703



1704



1705



1706



1707



1708



1709



1710



1711



1712



1713



1714



1715



1716



1717



1718



1719



1720



1721



1722



1723



1724



1725



1726



1727



1728



1729



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14B

1730



1731



1732



1733



1734



1735



1736



1737



1738



1739



1740



1741



1742



1743



1744



1745



1746



1747



1748



1749



1750



1751



1752



1753



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14C

1754



1755



1756



1757



1758



1759



1760



1761



1762



1763



1764



1765



1766



1767



1768



1769



1770



1771



1772



1773



1774



1775



1776



1777



1778



1779



1780



1781



1782



1783



1784



1785



1786



1787



1788



1789



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14D

1790



1791



1792



1793



1794



1795



1796



1797



1798



1799



1800



1801



1802



1803



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15

1804



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15A

1805



1806



1807



1808



1809



1810



1811



1812



1813



1814



1815



1816



1817



1818



1819



1820



1821



1822



1823



1824



1825



1826



1827



1828



1829



1830



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15B

1831



1832



1833



1834



1835



1836



1837



1838



1839



1840



1841



1842



1843



1844



1845



1846



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15C

1847



1848



1849



1850



1851



1852



1853



1854



1855



1856



1857



1858



1859



1860



1861



1862



1863



1864



1865



1866



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15D

1867



1868



1869



1870



1871



1872



1873



1874



1875



1876



1877



1878



1879



1880



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15E

1881



1882



1883



1884



1885



1886



1887



1888



1889



1890



1891



1892



1893



1894



1895



1896



1897



1898



1899



1900



1901



1902



1903



1904



1905



1906



1907



1908



1909



1910



1911



1912



1913



1914



1915



1916



1917



1918



1919



1920



1921



1922



1923



1924



1925



1926



1927



1928



1929



1930



1931



1932



1933



1934



1935



1936



1937



1938



1939



1940



1941



1942



1943



1944



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15F

1945



1946



1947



1948



1949



1950



1951



1952



1953



1954



1955



1956



1957



1958



1959



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15G

1960



1961



1962



1963



1964



1965



1966



1967



1968



1969



1970



1971



1972



1973



1974



1975



1976



1977



1978



1979



1980



1981



1982



1983



1984



1985



1986



1987



1988



1989



1990



1991



1992



1993



1994



1995



1996



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15H

1997



1998



1999



2000



2001



2002



2003



2004



2005



2006



2007



2008



2009



2010



2011



2012



2013



2014



2015



2016



2017



2018



2019



2020



2021



2022



2023



2024



2025



2026



2027



2028



2029



2030



2031



2032



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15I

2033



2034



2035



2036



2037



2038



2039



2040



2041



2042



2043



2044



2045



2046



2047



2048



2049



2050



2051



2052



2053



2054



2055



2056



2057



2058



2059



2060



2061



2062



2063



2064



2065



2066



2067



2068



2069



2070



2071



2072



2073



2074



2075



2076



2077



2078



2079



2080



2081



2082



2083



2084



2085



2086



2087



2088



2089



2090



2091



2092



2093



2094



2095



2096



2097



2098



2099



2100



2101



2102



2103



2104



2105



2106



2107



2108



2109



2110



2111



2112



2113



2114



2115



2116



2117



2118



2119



2120



2121



2122



2123



2124



2125



2126



2127



2128



2129



2130



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16

2131



2132



2133



2134



2135



2136



2137



2138



2139



2140



2141



2142



2143



2144



2145



2146



2147



2148



2149



2150



2151



2152



2153



2154



2155



2156



2157



2158



2159



2160



2161



2162



2163



2164



2165



2166



2167



2168



2169



2170



2171



2172



2173



2174



2175



2176



2177



2178



2179



2180



2181



2182



2183



2184



2185



2186



2187



2188



2189



2190



2191



2192



2193



2194



2195



2196



2197



2198



2199



2200



2201



2202



2203



2204



2205



2206



2207



2208



2209



2210



2211



2212



2213



2214



2215



2216



2217



2218



2219



2220



2221



2222



2223



2224



2225



2226



2227



2228



2229



2230



2231



2232



2233



2234



2235



2236



2237



2238



2239



2240



2241



2242



2243



2244



2245



2246



2247



2248



2249



2250



2251



2252



2253



2254



2255



2256



2257



2258



2259



2260



2261



2262



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17

2263



2264



2265



2266



2267



2268



2269



2270



2271



2272



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18

2273



2274



2275



2276



2277



2278



2279



2280



2281



2282



2283



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19

2284



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19A

2285



2286



2287



2288



2289



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19B

2290



2291



2292



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20

2293



2294



2295



2296



2297



2298



2299



2300



2301



2302



2303



2304



2305



2306



2307



2308



2309



2310



2311



2312



2313



2314



2315



2316



2317



2318



2319



2320



2321



2322



2323



2324



2325



2326



2327



2328



2329



2330



2331



2332



2333



2334



2335



2336



2337



2338



2339



2340



2341



2342



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21

2343



2344



2345



2346



2347



2348



2349



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22

2350



2351



2352



2353



2354



2355



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23

2356



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24

2357



2358



2359



EXECUTIVE SECRETARY REPORT – October 14th 2020 

 
 FINANCIAL REPORT 

 

 TEMPORARY LICENSES 
 

 STAFF ACTIVITIES 
 Meetings with Other Health Care Boards 
 COVID-19 
 Emergency Regulation Update 
 Courtney Lee – NABP Attorney Forum 

 
 

 REPORT TO BOARD 
 Licensing software update  

 
 

 BOARD RELATED NEWS 
 Investigator update 

 
  

 ACTIVITIES REPORT 
 Covid Vaccine update 

 Remdesivir 

 
 

 
 

2360



TEMPORARY LICENSES 
(Issued since last board meeting) 

Updated 9/30/2020 
 
 

Pharmacist 
 
Bradly Lende 
 
Pharmacy 
 
Lucile Packard Children’s Hospital Outpatient Pharmacy 

2361



 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

985 Damonte Ranch Pkwy Suite 206, Reno, Nevada 89521 

(775) 850-1440  •  1-800-364-2081  •  FAX  (775) 850-1444 

•  Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

 

 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 

ACTIVITIES REPORT 

SEPTEMBER 2-3, 2020 BOARD MEETING HELD IN LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 

 

This report is prepared and presented to keep interested legislators and others abreast of the activities of the Nevada 

State Board of Pharmacy.  Following is a summary of the September 2020 Board meeting. 

 

Licensing Activity: 

 

- 14 licenses were granted for Out-of-State pharmacies. 

- 5 licenses were granted for Out-of-State Compounding pharmacies. 

- 1 license was granted for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility. 

- 1 license was granted for Nevada MDEG companies.   

- 1 license was granted for Nevada pharmacies. 

- 29 licenses were granted for Out-of-State Wholesalers 

- 1 license was granted for Nevada Wholesaler 

- 1 registration renewal was granted for Pharmaceutical Technicians 

- 1 registration renewal was granted for Pharmacists 

- 2 registrations were granted for APRN Prescribe 

- 1 registration was granted for Interns 

- 3 registrations were granted for Pharmacists 

- 3 registrations were granted for Controlled Substance 

 

Disciplinary Actions: 

- APRN SJ shall receive a public reprimand, pay a $1,000 fine and pay $950 in attorney’s fees and costs for 

unlawfully prescribing controlled substances/dangerous drugs in Dr. AQ’s name and credentials. 

- Walmart Pharmacy #10-3728 shall pay a $1,000 fine and pay $1,000 in attorney’s fees and costs as the 

pharmacy owner responsible for actions of its employees in which two unauthorized refills were 

dispensed. 

- RPH PL’s registration was revoked for diverting drugs from his employing pharmacy. 

- Dr. VW shall pay a $14,000 fine and pay $1,962.87 in attorney’s fees and costs for writing multiple 

controlled substance prescriptions while her license to practice medicine in Nevada was inactive.  Dr. VW 

falsely represented to the Board that she held an active and current Nevada license with the NSBME on 

her CS renewal applications for the years 2010, 2012, 2014, 2016 and 2018.   

-  

Other Activity: 

  

- The usual Board business reports were given, including recent and future speaking engagements; reports 

on national meetings; and collaboration with other state agencies. 

- Licensing software update was provided. 

2362



 

 

Public Hearing: 

 

1. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.520 Schedule II.  The proposed amendment adds 

such drug products to the list of controlled substances in schedule II in conformity with the federal regulations 

of the Uniform Controlled Substances Act.  (LCB File No. R084-20) 
 

2. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639: Pharmacy Technician Ability to Administer 

Immunizations.  The proposed amendment will authorize a pharmacy technician with appropriate training to 

administer immunizations under the direct supervision of a pharmacist.  (LCB File No. R142-20)   

 

Workshop: 

 

1. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.742, 639.743, 639.744. and 639.745:  

Dispensing Practitioners.  The proposed amendments will modify the supervision of dispensing technician by 

dispensing practitioners. These amendments will authorize dispensing practitioners in group practices to share 

inventory of certain medications and centralize activities. The proposed amendments will increase the fees for 

the application for an initial registration, and the biennial renewal of a registration, as a registered dispensing 

technician. 

2363



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25

2364



2365



2366



2367



2368



2369



2370



2371



2372



2373



2374



2375



2376



2377



2378



2379



2380



2381



2382



2383



2384



2385



2386



2387



2388



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26

2389



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26A

2390



 

 

Documentation for this Agenda Item will be provided at a later date. 

2391



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26B

2392



 

 

Documentation for this Agenda Item will be provided at a later date. 

2393



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26C

2394



 

 

Documentation for this Agenda Item will be provided at a later date. 

2395



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27

2396



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28

2397



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29

 

2398


	Cover
	October 2020 Amended Agenda
	2. Public Comment
	3. Approval of September 2-3, Minutes 
	4. October 2020 Consent Agenda
	A.	Advanced InfusionCare – Dallas, TX
	B.	ApothecoRX – New York, NY
	C.	Ascension Michigan Pharmacy – Farmington Hills, MI
	D.	Biologics by McKesson – Cary, NC
	E.	Biologics by McKesson – Cary, NC
	F.	Complete Medical Supplies, Inc – Coral Springs, FL
	G.	divvyDOSE – Moline, IL
	H.	Eagle Pharmacy – Virginia Beach, VA
	I.	Galaxy Pharmacy – Long Beach, CA
	J.	LA Pharmacy LLC – Alhambra, CA
	K.	Magnolia Pharmacy – Cumming, GA
	L.	MedWiseRx – Tucson, AZ
	M.	MK Pharmacy – Houston, TX
	N.	Morris Apothecary LLC – Parsippany, NJ
	O.	Pharmxpress Pharmacy – Tampa, FL
	P.	Princeton Medical Pharmacy LLC – Princeton, NJ
	Q.	Spring Creek Pharmacy, LLC – Edmond, OK
	R.	Lucile Packard Children’s Hospital Outpatient Pharmacy – Palo Alto, CA
	S.	Saveway Market Pharmacy – Salmon, ID
	T.	Bonds Therapeutics LLC – Columbiana, OH
	U.	Capital Medical Corporation – Tallahassee, FL’
	V.	DJO, LLC – Carlsbad, CA
	W.	Gordian Medical, Inc. – Irvine, CA
	X.	Gordian Medical II, Inc. – Spring, TX
	Y.	Gordian Medical IV, Inc. – Riverside, CA
	Z.	Gordian Medical V, Inc. – Houston, TX
	AA.	Gordian Medical VI, Inc. – Irvine, CA
	BB.	Hanger Clinic – Salt Lake City, UT
	CC.	Mendtronix Inc. – Poway, CA
	DD.	Nexel Health – Katy, TX
	EE.	Next Level Medical Supply LLC – Ft. Lauderdale, FL
	FF.	Permobil, Inc. – Lebanon, TN
	GG.	SourceMark, LLC – Hebron, KY
	HH.	Exelead, Inc. – Indianapolis, IN
	II.	RVL Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Sayreville, NJ
	JJ.	Slayback Pharma, LLC – Princeton, NJ
	KK.	Time-Cap Laboratories, Inc. – Melville, NY
	LL.	QED Therapeutics, Inc. – Brisbane, CA
	MM.	McKesson Medical-Surgical Government Solutions LLC – Henrico, VA
	NN.	McKesson Medical-Surgical Minnesota Supply Inc. – Henrico, VA
	OO.	MD Logistics, LLC – Plainfield, IN 
	PP.	RxCrossroads 3PL LLC – Mason, OH
	QQ.	MD Logistics, LLC – Plainfield, IN
	RR.	MD Logistics, LLC – Plainfield, IN
	SS.	Rhythm Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Boston, MA
	TT.	McKesson Medical-Surgical Inc. – Clear Brook, VA
	UU.	McKesson Medical-Surgical Inc. – Rock Hill, SC
	VV.	McKesson Specialty Distribution, LLC

	WW.	McKesson Specialty Distribution, LLC 
	XX.	SC Wholesale – St. George, UT
	YY.	Renown Pharmacy – Reno, NV
	ZZ.	Affordable Excellence Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV
	AAA.	Desert Orthopaedic Pain Center – Las Vegas, NV

	BBB.	First Specialty Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV
	CCC.	Signature Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV
	DDD.	Ultimate Specialty Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV
	EEE.	All City Pharmacy LLC – Las Vegas, NV

	5. October 2020 Discipline
	A. Katherine Kuehl, RPH  (19-035-RPH-B-S)
	B. Lily Akana, PT (19-075-PT-S)
	C. Ashley Carrier, APRN (19-089-CS-S)
	D.	Theodore Herrera (19-079-IN-S)
	E. Jerald Clyde, RPH (19-061-RPH-S
	F. Smith’s Pharmacy #366 (19-061-PH-S)
	G. Abdel M. Khalek, MD (19-003-CS-A-S)
	H. Robert Chancellor, MD (19-003-CS-B-S)
	I. Lindsay Hoffman, PA-C (19-003-CS-C-S)
	J. Bernard Kofi Addo-Quaye, MD (19-242-CS-A-S)
	K. Mukwel Aiyuk, APRN (19-242-CS-B-S)
	L. Jeff Chen, MD (20-001-CS-N)
	M. Kirash Mirkia, MD (19-090-CS-S-A)

	6. Appeal hearings for citation and fine pursuant to NRS 639.2895(2) - Vinay Kumar Bararia, MD (19-003-CS-D-S)
	7. Petition for Reinstatement of Pharmacist Registration and Request to Appear Before the Board - Daniel Niel, RPH
	8. Applications for Pharmacist Registration by Examination - Michael Shimoide
	9.	Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician in Training Registration
	A.	Gina Chiofolo
	B.	Jasmine McLaurie

	10.	Application for Veterinarian Authority to Dispense Drugs Registration 
	A.	Carrie Lambert, DVM
	B.	Melissa Tyson, DVM

	11.	Applications for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License 
	A.	APS Pharmacy – Palm Harbor, FL
	B.	Carolina Infusion – Ridgeland, SC
	C.	Hunt Valley PharmaLAB – Cockeysville, MD
	D.	Olympia Pharmacy – Orlando, FL
	E.	Option Care – Roseville, MN
	F.	Pope Shenouda LLC – Holiday, FL
	G.	Procure Pharmaceutical Services – Burgettstown, PA

	12.	Application for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License 
	A.	ActiveStyle, Inc. – Reno, NV
	B.	Evolve Prosthetics & Orthotics – Henderson, NV
	C.	First Care Medical Supply LLC – Las Vegas, NV
	D.	Nevada Limb & Brace, LLC – Henderson, NV 

	14.	Applications for Out-of-State Wholesaler License 
	A.	Sheffield Pharmaceuticals LLC – New London, CT
	B.	Sun Pharmaceuticals Industries, Inc. – Billerica, MA
	C.	Zydus Pharmaceuticals (USA) Inc. – Pennington, NJ
	D.	Apnar Pharma LP – Chino, CA

	15. Application for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility 
	A.	Optum Compounding Services, LLC – Phoenix, AZ
	B.	Imprimis NJOF, LLC – Ledgewood, NJ
	C.	KRS Global Biotechnology, Inc. – Boca Raton, FL
	D.	Nephron Sterile Compounding Center, LLC – West Columbia, SC
	E.	Olympia Pharmacy – Orlando, FL
	F.	QuVa Pharma, Inc. – Sugar Land, TX
	G.	QuVa Pharma, Inc. – Temple, TX
	H.	Sincerus Florida, LLC – Pompano Beach, FL
	I.	Wedgewood Connect, LLC – San Jose, CA

	16. Application for Nevada Pharmacy License - Plus One Pharmacy, LLC – Las Vegas, NV 
	17. Request for Pharmacist Applicant to Retake the Nevada MPJE Exam - Sathish Ariarra Cariappa
	18. Application for Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Prescribe Registration - Natalie Wynn, APRN
	19.	Request to Engage in the Practice of Pharmacy at a Site Other than a Licensed Pharmacy 
	A.	KayLynn Bowman, RPH
	B.	James Kim, RPH

	20.	Approval of Revised Wholesaler Application 
	21.	Rehearing of Order in Case No. 20-008-PT-S on Application of Jevons Wang pursuant to NRS 639.252 
	22. Applications for Controlled Substance Registration - Kim Kemmerly, DMD
	23.	General Counsel Report.  
	24.	Executive Secretary Report:
	25. October 2020 Public Hearing - (LCB File No. R090-20)
	26. October 2020 Workshop
	A.	Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.501 Inspections; provision of self-assessment form
	B. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639 - Citation
	C.	Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.010 Definitions, (NAC) 639.403  Application required for pharmacist to engage in practice of pharmacy at site other than licensed pharmacy; exemption for pharmacists who administer immunizations, (NAC) 639.406 Hearing to approve or deny application from pharmacist,  (NAC) 639.409 Grounds for revocation, suspension or placement of restrictions on approval granted to pharmacist to practice pharmacy at site other than licensed pharmacy, (NAC) 639.412 Applica




